
tions 743(b) and 754 to P immediately before its
termination causes P to be treated as if it held two
assets, for purposes of section 197, at this time.
B’s and C’s proportionate share of the new
partnership’s adjusted basis is $25 each in one
asset, which continues to be amortized over the 10
years remaining in the original 15-year amortiza-
tion period. For the other asset, C’s proportionate
share of the new partnership’s adjusted basis is
$25 (the amount of the basis increase resulting
from the application of section 743 to the sale or
exchange by A of the interest in P), which is
amortized over a new 15-year period beginning in
January 1999.
(iv) If P did not have a section 754 election in

effect for its taxable year in which the sale of the
partnership interest by A to C occurred, the
adjusted basis of the new partnership in the
amortizable section 197 intangible is determined
solely under section 723, because the transfer is a
transaction described in section 721, and P does
not have a basis increase in its section 197
intangible. Under section 197(f)(2) and paragraph
(g)(2) of this section, the new partnership contin-
ues to amortize the amortizable section 197 intan-
gible over the 10 years remaining in the original
15-year amortization period. No additional amorti-
zation is allowable with respect to this asset under
section 197.
Example 15. Disguised sale to partnership. (i)

Assume that E and F are individuals who are
unrelated to each other within the meaning of
paragraph (h)(6) of this section. E has been
engaged in the active conduct of a trade or
business as a sole proprietor since 1990. E and F
form EF Partnership. E transfers all of the assets
of the business, having a fair market value of
$100x, to EF, and F transfers $40x of cash to EF.
E receives a 60 percent interest in EF and the
$40x of cash contributed by F, and F receives a 40
percent interest in EF, under circumstances in
which the transfer by E is treated as a sale of
property to EF under § 1.707–3(b).
(ii) Under § 1.707–3(a)(1), the transaction is

treated as if E had sold to EF a 40 percent interest
in each asset for $40x and contributed the remain-
ing 60 percent interest in each asset to EF in
exchange solely for an interest in EF. Because E
and EF are related persons within the meaning of
paragraph (h)(6) of this section, no portion of any
transferred section 197 intangible that E held
during the transition period (as defined in para-
graph (h)(3) of this section) is an amortizable
section 197 intangible pursuant to paragraph (h)(1)
of this section. Section 197(f)(9)(E) and paragraph
(h)(5) of this section do not apply to any portion
of the section 197 intangible in the hands of EF
because the basis of EF in these assets was not
increased under any of sections 732, 734, or 743.
Example 16. Acquisition by related person in

nonrecognition transaction. (i) A owns a
nonamortizable intangible that A acquired in 1990.
In 1997, A sells a one-half interest in the intan-
gible to B for cash. Immediately after the sale, A
and B, who are unrelated to each other, form
partnership P as equal partners. A and B each
contribute their one-half interest in the intangible
to P.
(ii) P has a transferred basis in the intangible

from A and B under section 723. The nonrecogni-
tion transfer rule under paragraph (g)(2)(i) of this
section applies to A’s transfer of its one-half
interest in the intangible to P, and consequently P
steps into A’s shoes with respect to A’s
nonamortizable transferred basis. The anti-
churning rules of paragraph (h)(1)(i) of this sec-
tion apply to B’s transfer of its one-half interest in
the intangible to P, because A, who is related to P

under paragraph (h)(6) of this section, held B’s
one-half interest in the intangible during the
transition period. Pursuant to paragraph (h)(10) of
this section, these rules apply to B’s transfer of its
one-half interest to P even though the nonrecogni-
tion transfer rule under paragraph (g)(2)(i) of this
section would have permitted P to step into B’s
shoes with respect to B’s otherwise amortizable
basis. Therefore, P’s entire basis in the intangible
is nonamortizable.
Example 17. Acquisition of partnership interest

following formation of partnership. (i) The facts
are the same as in Example 16 except that, in
1996, A formed P with an affiliate and contributed
the intangible to the partnership and except that
thereafter, in an unrelated transaction, B purchases
a 50 percent interest in P. P has a section 754
election in effect.
(ii) For the reasons set forth inExample 14(iii),

B is treated as if P owns two assets. B’s
proportionate share of P’s adjusted basis in one
asset is the same as A’s proportionate share of P’s
adjusted basis in that asset, which is not amortiz-
able under section 197. For the other asset, B’s
proportionate share of the remaining adjusted basis
of P is amortized over a new 15-year period.
Example 18. Acquisition by related corporation

in nonrecognition transaction. (i) The facts are the
same asExample 16, except that P is a corpora-
tion.
(ii) P has a transferred basis in the intangible

from A and B under section 362. Pursuant to
paragraph (h)(10) of this section, the application
of the nonrecognition transfer rule under paragraph
(g)(2)(i) and the anti-churning rules of paragraph
(h)(1)(i) of this section to the facts of this
Example 18is the same as inExample 16. Thus,
P’s entire basis in the intangible is nonamortizable.
Example 19. Acquisition from corporation re-

lated to purchaser through remote indirect interest.
(i) X, Y, and Z are each corporations that have
only one class of issued and outstanding stock. X
owns 25 percent of the stock of Y and Y owns 25
percent of the outstanding stock of Z. No other
shareholder of any of these corporations is related
to any other shareholder or to any of the corpora-
tions. On June 30, 1997, X purchases from Z
section 197 intangibles that Z owned during the
transition period (as defined in paragraph (h)(3) of
this section).
(ii) Pursuant to paragraph (h)(6)(iii)(B) of this

section, the beneficial ownership interest of X in Z
is 6.25 percent, determined by treating X as if it
owned a proportionate (25 percent) interest in the
stock of Z that is actually owned by Y. Thus, even
though X is related to Y and Y is related to Z, X
and Z are not considered to be related for
purposes of the anti-churning rules of section 197.
Example 20. Gain recognition election. (i) B

owns 25 percent of the stock of S, a corporation
that uses the calendar year as its taxable year. No
other shareholder of B or S is related to each
other. S is not a member of a controlled group of
corporations within the meaning of section
1563(a). S has section 197 intangibles that it
owned during the transition period and was not
permitted to amortize or depreciate under any
other provision of the Code. S had a basis of
$25,000 in the intangibles. In 1997, S sells these
intangibles to B for $75,000. S recognizes a gain
of $50,000 on the sale and has no other items of
income, deduction, gain, or loss for the year,
except that S also has a net operating loss of
$20,000 from prior years that it would otherwise
be entitled to use in 1997 pursuant to section
172(b). As part of the transaction with B, S agrees
to make the gain recognition election pursuant to
section 197(f)(9)(B).

(ii) If the gain recognition election had not been
made, S would have taxable income of $30,000
for 1997 and a tax liability of $4,500. As the
result of the election, S must pay a total tax
liability for the year of $17,500 (35 percent of
$50,000), consisting of the sum of its regular tax
liability of $4,500 and the additional amount of
$13,000 pursuant to section 197(f)(9)(B).
(iii) Pursuant to paragraph (h)(9)(v)(A) of this

section, S determines the amount of its net
operating loss deduction in subsequent years with-
out regard to the gain recognized on the sale of
the section 197 intangible to B. Accordingly, the
entire $20,000 net operating loss deduction that
would have been available in 1997 but for the
gain recognition election may be used in 1998,
subject to the limitations of section 172.
(iv) B has a basis of $75,000 in the section 197

intangibles acquired from S. As the result of the
gain recognition election by S, B may amortize
$50,000 of its basis under section 197. The
remaining basis may not be amortized by B.
Example 21. Section 338 election. (i) P corpora-

tion makes a qualified stock purchase of the stock
of T corporation from two shareholders in July
1997, and a section 338 election is made by P.
One of the selling shareholders is an individual
who owns 25 percent of the total value of the
stock of each of the T and P corporation. No other
shareholder of either T or P owns stock in both of
these corporations, and no other shareholder is
related to any other shareholder of either corpora-
tion.
(ii) Old target and new target (as these terms

are defined in § 1.338–1(c)(13)) are members of a
controlled group of corporations under section
267(b)(3), as modified by section 197(f)(9)(C)(i),
and any section 197 intangible held by old target
at any time during the transition period is not an
amortizable section 197 intangible in the hands of
new target. However, a gain recognition election
under paragraph (h)(9)(i) of this section may be
made with respect to this transaction.

(l) Effective dates. This section is
applicable on the date final regulations
are published in the Federal Register,
except that § 1.197–2(c)(13) (exception
from section 197 for separately acquired
rights of fixed duration or amount) is
applicable August 11, 1993 (or July 26,
1991, if a valid retroactive election has
been made under § 1.197–1T).

Margaret Milner Richardson,
Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

(Filed by the Office of the Federal Register on
January 9, 1997, 2:53 p.m., and published in the
isue of the Federal Register for January 16, 1997,
62 F.R. 2336)

Foundations Status of Certain
Organizations

Announcement 97–27
The following organizations have

failed to establish or have been unable
to maintain their status as public chari-
ties or as operating foundations. Accord-
ingly, grantors and contributors may not,
after this date, rely on previous rulings
or designations in the Cumulative List

30



of Organizations (Publication 78), or on
the presumption arising from the filing
of notices under section 508(b) of the
Code. This listing doesnot indicate that
the organizations have lost their status
as organizations described in section
501(c)(3), eligible to receive deductible
contributions.
Former Public Charities. The follow-

ing organizations (which have been
treated as organizations that are not
private foundations described in section
509(a) of the Code) are now classified
as private foundations:
Action Arts, Inc., Pasadena, CA
Alleluia, San Antonio, TX
Americans Back in Charge Foundation,
Washington, DC

Bellaire Club Inc., Bellaire, TX
Bible Stories for the Children of the
World, Inc., Longmont, CO

Biblical Studies Association Inc.,
Mableton, GA

Black Police Officers Selection
Committee, Inc., Houston, TX

Capitol Hill Artists Association, Inc.,
Northglenn, CO

Car Clay Corporation, El Paso, TX
Caring About People, Inc., Boulder, CO
Caring for Children Foundation of
Texas, Inc., Dallas, TX

Center for a New Direction Inc., Ann
Arbor, MI

Central Arizona Refugee Ecumenical
Services, Phoenix, AZ

Central New Mexico Crimestoppers,
Edgewood, NM

Change This World, Austin, TX
Charlotte Edwards Center, Inc., La
Porte, TX

Childbirth Connection, Austin, TX
Children Benefit Foundation, Inc., Mesa,
AZ

Dallas Repertoire Ballet, Dallas, TX
Denvers First Step, Denver, CO
Earthwide Education Center, Inc.,
Camden, NY

East Harlem Community Land Tr Ltd.,
New York, NY

Elmore County Education Foundation,
Inc., Wetumpka, AL

Four Winds Resource Conservation and
Development Area Inc., Quanah, TX

Funston Elementary Parent-Teachers
Organization, Wichita, KS

Hands United in Good Spirit Inc.,
Miami, FL

Harmony Alliance Inc., Phoenix, AZ
Hugs Inc., Oklahoma City, OK
Humanitarian Air Transport Services,
Inc., Sarasota, FL

Human Pursuits the Western Humanities
Concern, Salt Lake City, UT

IAHA Foundation, Austin, TX

Imperial Homes Inc., Los Angeles, CA
Interracial Family & Social Alliance Of
DFW, Dallas, TX

Isleta Club of Albuquerque, Inc.,
Albuquerque, NM

I X L Community Improvement
Association, Oklahoma City, OK

Jackson Area Quality Initiative Inc.,
Jackson, MI

Keller Project Graduation Inc., Keller,
TX

Keresztmama Foundation, Inc., New
York, NY

Lallement Memorial Committee, Boston,
MA

Latinas for Empowerment and
Economic Development, Inc., Albany,
NY

Latvian Renaissance Association, Inc.,
Darien, CT

Law School Foundation, Inc., Southport,
CT

Leadership South, Davidson, NC
Magi Foundation, Houston, TX
Maine Masonic Foundation, Portland,
ME

Major County Senior Citizens, Inc.,
Fairview, OK

Maranatha Ministries, Birmingham, AL
Margaret Bowers Scholarship Fund,
Richmond, TX

Mark Travis Ministries, Inc., Corpus
Christi, TX

Narrow Door Ministries Inc., Wichita,
KS

National Church Residences of
Lawrence Park, PA, Columbus, OH

North Fort Worth Community Arts
Center Incorporated, Fort Worth, TX

Northside Plaza Inc., Houston, TX
Oakland Exploratory Childrens
Museum, Richmond, CA

O B P C,Inc., Denver, CO
Oceanic Foundation, Boulder, CO
Ocoee Kids Incorporated, Ocoee, FL
Oil of Gladness Outreach Ministries,
Inc., Rupert, WV

Oklahoma Dare Officers Association
Foundation, Edmond, OK

Oklahoma Livestock Industry
Foundation, Inc., Stillwater, OK

Oklahoma State Hemophilia
Association, Tulsa, OK

Old Sixth Ward Neighborhood
Association, Houston, TX

Old Town Music Hall Inc., El Segundo,
CA

Olney Midget & Teen League Inc.,
Philadelphia, PA

One Step Forward A Transitional Home
for Battered Women and Children,
Los Angeles, CA

Open Circle, Inc., Santa Fe, NM

Open Door Food Pantry Inc., Mt.
Jackson, VA

Opera Theater Corvallis Inc., Corvallis,
OR

Opportunity Skyway Inc., College Park,
MD

Pacific Communications Inc., Potomac,
MD

Pack Productions, Inc., Brooklyn, NY
Palo Duro Legal Aid, Lubbock, TX
P A L S Inc., Stockton, CA
Pineywoods Animal Shelter Inc.,
Crockett, TX

Positive I.D. Incorporated, Olney, MD
Pride Production Inc., Pine Bluff, AR
Reality, Inc., Kingman, KS
Reality Theatre, Columbus, OH
San Antonio Local Organizing
Committee, San Antonio, TX

San Antonio Riders Foundation, San
Antonio, TX

San Benito Literacy Center Inc., San
Benito, TX

Sangre De Cristo Independent Living
Center A Non-profit Corporation,
Pueblo, CO

San Tan Historical Society, Inc., Queen
Creek, AZ

School Childrens Assistance Fund,
Canyon, TX

Sharon Affordable Housing, Inc.,
Sharon, CT

Silver Street Assistance Program,
Houston, TX

Smiles Against Cancer Corporation,
Humble, TX

Songmakers Almanac, Boulder, CO
Texas Early Education Heritage Society,
Houston, TX

Texas Enterprise for Housing
Development, Inc., Pharr, TX

Texas Foundation for Educational
Options, Lewisville, TX

Texas Native American Indian
Association, Fort Worth, TX

Texas Public Sculpture Fund, Denton,
TX

Texas Table Tennis Association,
Houston, TX

Texas Tissue Network, Inc., El Paso, TX
Upshur County Crimestoppers, Inc.,
Gilmer, TX

Valley Voice Youth Choir, Kent, WA
Villa Encantada, Inc., Albuquerque, NM
Wilderness Covenant Incorporated,
Tucson, AZ

Wilderness Heritage Society, Inc.,
Georgetown, TX

Wildlife Museum, Inc., Fort Worth, TX
William Owens Ministry, Inc., Tulsa,
OK
If an organization listed above sub-

mits information that warrants the re-
newal of its classification as a public
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charity or as a private operating founda-
tion, the Internal Revenue Service will
issue a ruling or determination letter
with the revised classification as to
foundation status. Grantors and con-
tributors may thereafter rely upon such
ruling or determination letter as pro-
vided in section 1.509(a)–7 of the
Income Tax Regulations. It is not
the practice of the Service to announce
such revised classification of foundation
status in the Internal Revenue Bulletin.

Scenarios of Disciplinary Actions
From the Office of Director of
Practice
The following scenarios are compos-

ites of matters that have come to the
attention of the Office of Director of
Practice. The scenarios are intended to
inform tax practitioners of the types of
activity that may result in disciplinary
action under Treasury Department Cir-
cular No. 230, Regulations Governing
the Practice of Attorneys, Certified Pub-
lic Accountants, Enrolled Agents, En-
rolled Actuaries, and Appraisers Before
the Internal Revenue Service (a republi-
cation of 31 C.F.R. Part 10). Because
disciplinary matters are resolved on the
basis of their particular facts and cir-
cumstances, these scenarios do not con-
stitute precedent in any matter before
the Director.
Comments concerning the scenarios

should be sent to: Office of Director of
Practice, C:AP:P, Internal Revenue Ser-
vice, 1111Constitution Ave., NW, Wash-
ington, DC 20224.
False statements. The practitioner

was engaged by a physician to prepare
the physician’s individual income tax
return. When the physician delivered his
records, he commented to the practitio-
ner that he hoped he could take a
substantial deduction for using his car in
his practice. The practitioner did not ask
for further substantiation and, on the tax
return submitted to the IRS, deducted
various automobile expenses: deprecia-
tion, insurance, maintenance, gas, and
oil. When the tax return was audited,
the physician explained to the IRS audi-
tor that he considered his car to be used
in his practice because he drove it
between his home and office.
Thereafter, the Director called the

practitioner’s attention to possible viola-
tions of Circular 230: lack of due dili-
gence in preparing tax returns in viola-
tion of section 10.22(a); and giving false
information to the Treasury Department

in violation of section 10.51(b). The
practitioner asserted that he was entitled
to place good faith reliance on his
client’s information. However, the prac-
titioner could not cite any authoritative
exception to the general rule that com-
muting expenses are not deductible.
Consequently, the Director considered
the practitioner to be in violation of
section 10.51(b).
Contemptuous conduct. The practi-

tioner called an IRS revenue officer to
discuss his client’s case. The revenue
officer, after listening to the practition-
er’s comments, stated that the client
could still expect enforcement action.
Whereupon, the practitioner said, ‘‘How
about my coming down there and jerk-
ing you around for a while?’’ He added
he ‘‘would not mind kicking down the
door.’’ The revenue officer terminated
the call and notified IRS’ Inspection
Service. Later in the day, the practition-
er called back to apologize.
The Director contacted the practition-

er with regard to possible violations of
Circular 230: attempting to influence an
IRS employee’s official action by use of
a threat, a violation of section 10.51(f);
and contemptuous conduct consisting of
abusive language, a violation of section
10.51(i). In response, the practitioner
offered little in the way of explanation,
stating that he had simply lost his
temper.
The Director determined that the

practitioner’s statements constituted con-
temptuous conduct in violation of sec-
tion 10.51(i). Since this was the only
such instance involving the practitioner
in many years of IRS practice, and in
view of the quick apology, the Director
determined that a reprimand, with a
warning as to future conduct, was the
appropriate sanction.
Due Diligence.The practitioner’s em-

ployees completed clients’ tax returns,
which the practitioner reviewed and
signed as the preparer. In completing a
client’s individual income tax return,
one of the employees accepted the cli-
ent’s characterization of several trips as
business trips. The employee made no
further inquiry and did not request sub-
stantiation. In fact, no business purpose
for the trips could be substantiated. The
practitioner reviewed and signed the tax
return.
The Director contacted the practition-

er, stating that the practitioner may have
violated the regulations in Circular 230:
lack of due diligence in preparing tax

returns in violation of section 10.22(a);
and giving false information to the Trea-
sury Department in violation of section
10.51(b). The practitioner responded that
it would be unfair to hold him respon-
sible for the actions of the employee,
who had disregarded the office policy of
obtaining substantiation for business
trips.
In consideration of the practitioner’s

office policy, and in the absence of a
history of inaccurate returns, the Direc-
tor was satisfied that the practitioner had
not knowingly submitted false informa-
tion. Therefore, the Director resolved in
the practitioner’s favor any question
with regard to a violation of section
10.51(b). However, the practitioner, as
the person who signed the tax return,
could not disclaim responsibility for the
tax return’s accuracy. The Director con-
sidered the practitioner to be in violation
of section 10.22(a) for failing to exer-
cise due diligence.
Knowledge of client’s mistake. The

client completed the practitioner’s tax
return preparation questionnaire, indicat-
ing that he was separated from his
spouse. In reviewing the questionnaire,
the practitioner asked the client whether
he was ‘‘legally separated.’’ The client
replied that he was. The practitioner
prepared the client’s Form 1040, listing
the client’s filing status as single.
Later, the practitioner learned that

although the client and the client’s
spouse had come to terms on a separa-
tion agreement, the agreement had not
been incorporated into a decree of di-
vorce or separate maintenance. The
practitioner, knowing that the client had
declined to file an amended tax return in
a prior year, did not inform the client of
the mistake.
The Director informed the practitioner

that his conduct raised a question re-
garding violation of section 10.21 of
Circular 230, which requires a practition-
er who knows that his client has not
complied with the Federal revenue laws
or has made an error in, or omission
from, a tax return or document to advise
the client of such noncompliance, error,
or omission. The practitioner’s assump-
tion that the client would not file an
amended tax return did not relieve the
practitioner of his duty to advise the
client of errors. The practitioner’s con-
duct violated section 10.21, the Director
found.
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